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President Pence remained in the United States Capitol from the time he was evacuated from the 
Senate Chamber until the sessions resumed.  

 
During national news coverage of the aforementioned events, video footage which 

appeared to be captured on mobile devices of persons present on the scene depicted evidence of 
violations of local and federal law, including scores of individuals inside the U.S. Capitol building 
without authority to be there. 

 
According to records obtained through a search warrant which was served on Google, a 

mobile device associated with Google e-mail address “realjahleo@gmail.com” was present at the 
U.S. Capitol on January 6, 2021.  Google estimates device location using sources including GPS 
data and information about nearby Wi-Fi access points and Bluetooth beacons.  This location data 
varies in its accuracy, depending on the source(s) of the data.  As a result, Google assigns a “maps 
display radius” for each location data point.  Thus, where Google estimates that its location data 
is accurate to within 10 meters, Google assigns a “maps display radius” of 10 meters to the location 
data point.  Finally, Google reports that its “maps display radius” reflects the actual location of the 
covered device approximately 68% of the time. In this case, Google location data shows that a 
device associated with Google e-mail address realjahleo@gmail.com and the name “Jah Leo” was 
within the U.S. Capitol at the times and locations shown in the map below (“Figure 1”). As 
illustrated in Figure 1, the location data points encompass areas that are both entirely and partially 
within the U.S. Capitol Building between 2:43:38 PM and 4:32:18 PM (Eastern Time) on January 
6, 2021.   
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Figure 1 
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 I have reviewed law enforcement body camera footage and security camera footage 
covering the Senate Wing Door (north side), and several still images are below (in chronological 
order). Based on LIU’s passport, driver’s license, and Department of Defense photographs, your 
affiant located LIU on law enforcement body camera footage outside the U.S. Capitol building, as 
well as on U.S. Capitol building security camera footage entering the U.S. Capitol. LIU appears 
in the stills below dressed in a black jacket with a red, white and blue American flag hood donned 
over his head. I have compared these images and they are all consistent with LIU. In addition, on 
July 20, 2021, your affiant met with USMC Reserve personnel familiar with LIU; a USMC 
Reserve Officer reviewed the following still image taken from law enforcement body camera 
footage on January 6, 2021 and positively identified the individual in the photo to be LIU: 
 

 
 
 LIU is observed entering the U.S. Capitol building on two separate occasions.  LIU first 
entered at approximately 3:24 PM and left the Capitol at approximately 3:31 PM by climbing 
through a broken window.Your affiant has circled LIU in yellow in the images: 
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 At approximately 3:36 PM, LIU was observed on law enforcement body camera footage 
on the Upper West Terrace, north side (exterior) of the U.S. Capitol Building, in the area of the 
Senate Wing Door: 
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 At approximately 3:56 PM, LIU reentered the U.S. Capitol building and left at 
approximately 4:22 PM. Your affiant has circled LIU in yellow in the following images: 
 

 
 



   
 

11 
 

 

 
 

 
 

  



   
 

12 
 

According to New York City Police Department (“NYPD”) license plate reader information, 
on January 6, 2021, at approximately 5:32 AM, a 2004 Jeep Wrangler (registered to LIU’s 
stepfather) hit traveling in the Lincoln Tunnel Outbound West Tube, leaving New York City. 
Additionally, later on January 6, 2021, at approximately 11:55 PM, the same vehicle hit traveling 
northbound on the George Washington Bridge, Lowel Level into New York City, and again at 
approximately 12:04 AM (on January 7, 2021) traveling Queens-bound on the Throgs Neck 
Bridge.  

 
According to financial records, on January 6, 2021, LIU’s credit card was used in two (2) 

transactions at a BP gas station located in Hauppauge, New York.  Also on January 6, 2021, LIU 
executed two (2) transactions in and around Washington, D.C, including a $52.98 purchase at a 
Sunoco gas station.  

 
Based on the foregoing, your affiant submits that there is probable cause to believe that 

LIU violated 18 U.S.C. §§ 1752(a)(1) and (2), which makes it a crime to (1) knowingly enter or 
remain in any restricted building or grounds without lawful authority to do; and (2) knowingly, 
and with intent to impede or disrupt the orderly conduct of Government business or official 
functions, engage in disorderly or disruptive conduct in, or within such proximity to, any 
restricted building or grounds when, or so that, such conduct, in fact, impedes or disrupts the 
orderly conduct of Government business or official functions; or attempts or conspires to do so.  
For purposes of Section 1752 of Title 18, a “restricted building” includes a posted, cordoned off, 
or otherwise restricted area of a building or grounds where the President or other person 
protected by the Secret Service, including the Vice President, is or will be temporarily visiting; 
or any building or grounds so restricted in conjunction with an event designated as a special 
event of national significance.  

  






